

Freedom of Information Policy

Printed copies must not be considered the definitive version

DOCUMENT CONTROL		POLICY NO.	CG-136
Policy Group:	Corporate		
Author:	L Geddes / R Hinchliffe		
Reviewer:	K Lewis L Fitzpatrick		
	L Geddes R Hinchliffe		
Scope: (Applicability)	Board wide	Version no.	1.0
Status:	Final	Implementation date:	July 2016
Approved by:	APF (25/08/2016	Last review date	: New Policy
Impact Assessed:	Yes (June 2016)	Next review date	July 2018

CONTENTS

4	DUDDOSE AND SCODE	Page
1.	PURPOSE AND SCOPE	3
2.	POLICY AIMS	3
	2.1 Freedom of Information2.2 Environmental Information	3 3 3
	2.3 Data Protection and the Re-use of Public Sector	4
	Information Regulations 2005	
	2.4 Definitions	4
3.	RESPONSIBILITIES AND ORGANISATIONAL ARRANGEMENT	5
	3.1 What constitutes a Freedom of information request?	5
	3.2 Responsibility3.3 Legal Compliance	6
	3.4 Records Management	6 7 7
	3.5 The Publication Scheme	7
	3.6 General rights of access	7
	3.7 Duty to provide advice and assistance	8 8 9
	3.8 Timescales3.9 Handling a Request for Information	8
	3.9.1 Clarification	9
	3.9.2 Charging	10
	3.9.3 Transferring Requests	11
	3.9.4 Consultation with Third Parties	11
	3.9.5 Public Sector Contracts	12 12
	3.9.6 Exempt Information and refusal of requests3.9.7 Informing Stakeholders of FOISA requirements	14
	3.10 Review	14
	3.11 Training	14
4.	MONTORING	15
	4.1 Monitoring Compliance and Reporting	15
5.	EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY	
6.	KEY CONTACTS	
7.	DOCUMENT CONTROL SHEET	
APPENDICE	ES .	
Appendix 1	Procedure for dealing with FOI requests	
Appendix 2	Internal Review Procedure	
Appendix 3	Definition of Environmental Information Regulations (Scotland) 2004	

Page 2 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy Date: May 2016

Version: 1.0

1. PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (FOISA) is a legal requirement for the disclosure of information held by Scottish Public Authorities or by third party providing services for them. The "applicant" who requests information from the public authority which holds that information is entitled to be given it by the authority.

2. POLICY AIMS

NHS Dumfries and Galloway is committed to transparency in the way that it works. This commitment is supported by FOISA, and aims to increase accountability across the public sector and in government by ensuring that people have the right to access information. FOISA enables members of the public to examine the decisions of public authorities more closely and ensure that the services provided are efficiently and properly delivered.

2.1 Freedom of Information

FOISA applies to almost all public bodies in Scotland, including local authority councils, the NHS, colleges and universities, the police, the Scottish Parliament and the Scottish Government, prisons, and any Scottish Government funded agencies. It can also apply to 3rd Party suppliers such as contractors who provide a service to any Scottish Public Authority.

FOISA states that Scottish Public Authorities have a legal obligation to respond to any request within 20 working days of receipt.

2.2 Environmental Information

Under Section 62 of the FOI(S) Act the Scottish Ministers have made the Environmental Information (Scotland) Regulations 2004 (EIRs). These make provision in Scottish law of the Aarhus Convention of June 1998 on "Access to Information, Public Participation in Decision Making and Access to Justice in Environmental Matters". They also implement the European Commission Directive 2003/4/EC. The Convention is based on the principle that every person has the right to live in an environment adequate to their health and wellbeing.

Through the Environmental Information Regulations there is a provision similar, but not identical to, Freedom of Information legislation which conveys a "right to access environmental information". Environmental information has a wide definition. The definition from the EIRs is available in Appendix 3 of this Policy. It is not an exclusive definition and may include information on the Board's policies, plans and activities likely to affect the state of human health and safety – for example, the cleanliness of our premises and control of infection.

Page 3 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

There are differences in the obligations on the Board under the EIRs as compared with Freedom of Information Act. Most notable relate to:-

- requests for information may be made orally there is no requirement to put them in writing or other permanent form.
- the timescale for responding may, in certain circumstances, extend to 40 working days.
- the charging arrangements under EIRs allow for flexibility for the Board to recover the costs of providing info.

2.3 Data Protection and the Re-use of Public Sector Information Regulations 2005

The Data Protection Act 1998 protects information that is held about individuals by public authorities. Individuals can ask for and receive a description of the personal data held about them, which is known as a Subject Access Request.

Information is exempt from the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 and the Environmental Information (Scotland) regulations 2004 if it is a request for information from an individual about personal information we hold about them.

Requests for information about other living individuals should be dealt with under Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002, but can be refused on the basis that they breach the principles of the Data Protection Act.

Applicants can request to use public sector information subject to certain conditions, exemptions and charges. Request must be in writing, state the information required and intended use. The Integration Joint Board has 20 days to respond whether by accepting the request, refusing the request or requesting a charge.

2.4 **DEFINITIONS**

Document Type	Definition	
Freedom of Information Request	A non-routine request for information that will enable the public to have a greater understanding of the role of the public body, the decisions they make and how they spend public money.	
Environmental A non-routine request for information that provide public access to environmental information held by the public body.		

Page 4 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Document Type	Definition	
Data Protection Act Request	Legislation that controls how personal information can be used and your rights to ask for information about yourself.	
Subject Access Request	A written, signed request from an individual to see information held on them. The Data Controller must provide all such information in a readable form within 40 days of receipt of the request and may charge a small fee (up to £10).	

3. Responsibilities and Organisational Arrangements

NHS Dumfries and Galloway have a statutory responsibility to make information available in accordance with Freedom of Information legislation. It is essential that all staff are aware of, and take seriously their responsibilities under the legislation. As an organisation we are committed to meeting statutory timescales under Freedom of Information legislation and in supporting staff to achieve the requirements of the legislation. Any member of staff who is unable to respond effectively to the principles set out in this Policy should advise their line manager or more senior member of staff.

3.1 What constitutes a Freedom of Information request?

Any request for information or data should be treated as Freedom of Information. Unless applicable to Environment Information Regulations or Data Protection.

It is important to make a distinction between requests for information and routine correspondence. Requests for information that can be provided without any question – i.e. press releases, routine enquiries, or leaflets - should be treated as business as usual.

Similarly, requests that are not for recorded information but which pose questions (e.g. please explain your policy on X or position on Y?) should be treated as routine correspondence.

A valid request must:

- Be in writing or in another permanent form (letter, fax, email, voicemail message)
- State the full name (or include a surname) of the applicant and provide an address for correspondence (this can be an email address)
- Describe the information requested.

Page 5 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Requests for information do not need to mention the Act or to explain why information is being requested.

3.2 Responsibility

The Chief Executive is ultimately responsible for the Board's compliance with relevant statutory provisions and shall provide strategic direction on operation of the Freedom of Information Policy.

The FOI Lead has responsibility for advising the Chief Executive on the application of FOI legislation and for the legislation to be read as reference to both FOISA and EIRs ensuring that the Board complies under the legislation. He/she is assisted in this by a Freedom of Information Officer.

Managers are responsible for ensuring staff are aware of the FOI policy, procedures and guidance in carrying out their day to day work.

All staff should have a general understanding of FOI legislation and know where to refer any issues on which they require guidance.

Compliance with the Policy is compulsory for all staff. A member of staff who fails to comply with this Policy may be subject to disciplinary action under the NHS Dumfries and Galloway's disciplinary policy.

3.3 Legal Compliance

NHS Dumfries and Galloway:

- regards all identifiable personal information relating to patients as confidential; compliance with legal and regulatory framework will be achieved, monitored and maintained.
- regards all identifiable personal information relating to staff as confidential except where national policy on accountability and openness (public interest) requires otherwise.
- will monitor compliance with legal requirements and undertake independent assessments and audits from time to time.
- will establish and maintain policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the Data Protection Act 1998, Human Rights Act 1998, the common law duty of confidentiality.

To ensure the organisation can effectively comply with its obligations, staff will be provided with appropriate Information Governance training commensurate with their role.

Page 6 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

3.4 Records Management

Managing records effectively is essential for making access to information possible. 'Records management' covers all aspects of a record's life, from creating it to maintaining it, and then its disposal (either by storing it in an archive or destroying it).

A record is information that is held as part of a system, on paper, in an electronic format, or on video or audio tape. Good records should be:

- Factual, consistent and accurate
- Relevant and useful.
- Clear and concise
- Up to date
- Complete

NHS Dumfries and Galloway will ensure it has systems in place to manage its corporate records in both electronic and paper format in order to respond effectively to requests for information.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway complies with the Scottish Government's policy on the Management, Retention and Disposal of Personal Health Records, under Section 61 of the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002. All staff must ensure that all records comply with the policy and follow NHS Dumfries and Galloway's systems and procedures for record keeping.

It is a criminal offence for a public authority to alter, damage, erase, destroy or conceal any record they hold once someone has made a request for information. This offence can be committed by the authority or its employees. Such cases will be dealt with in the Sheriff Court and the offence carries a fine of up to £5,000.

3.5 The Publication Scheme

NHS Dumfries and Galloway's Publication Scheme details the information that the organisation makes routinely available to the general public without them having to make specific requests. It details the format in which the information is held and whether there is a charge for its provision. The publication scheme has been approved by the Scottish Information Commissioner and is available on the NHS Dumfries and Galloway website and in hard copy on request from the Chief Executive's Office (01387 272752).

3.6 General rights of access

Section 1 of the Act gives a general right of access from January 1 2005 to recorded information held by NHS Dumfries and Galloway, subject to certain conditions and exemptions contained in the Act.

Page 7 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Simply, any person in the world making a request for information to the organisation is entitled:

- to be informed in writing whether NHS Dumfries and Galloway holds the information of the description specified in the request; and
- if NHS Dumfries and Galloway holds the information, to have that information provided to them (or a clear response setting out why the information has been withheld).

For the purposes of general rights of access, a request is valid if made in writing, transmitted by electronic means, is received in legible form and is capable of being used for subsequent reference such as fax or e-mail.

3.7 Duty to provide advice and assistance

NHS Dumfries and Galloway has a duty under Section 15 of the Act, to provide advice and assistance to persons who have made, or wish to make, requests for information. It is the responsibility of NHS Dumfries and Galloway to ensure that systems and procedures are in place to meet this duty.

The systems and procedures will conform to the Code of Practice issued under Section 60 of the Act.

3.8 Timescales

The Act obliges NHS Dumfries and Galloway to respond:

- Promptly; and
- in any event not later than 20 working days after the date on which the request was received. The request is considered as being received by NHS Dumfries and Galloway when it is delivered.

Any member of staff receiving a request must pass on the request immediately to the FOI Officer in the Chief Executive's Office to ensure that the time limit can be complied with. The deadline for the reply is calculated from the time the request was received in any part of NHS Dumfries and Galloway.

The obligation is to reply promptly and not more than 20 working days following receipt. A response should not be delayed until the end of the 20-day period if there is no reason why the information cannot be provided earlier.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway will acknowledge receipt of FOI requests within two working days.

Page 8 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

A flowchart specifying how NHS Dumfries and Galloway will deal with FOI requests is detailed in Appendix 1.

3.9 Handling a Request for Information

3.9.1 Clarification

Where the applicant has not provided enough information to enable staff to identify and locate the information sought, or where the request is unclear, NHS Dumfries and Galloway will request further information/clarification to help the applicant describe more clearly and particularly what information they require. This should not be an attempt to determine the applicant's aims or motivation.

Where more information is needed to clarify the request, it is important that the applicant is contacted as soon as possible.

In such situations the clock for the 20 working day timescale for a reply stops ticking. The clock re-starts from zero once NHS Dumfries and Galloway has received the required clarification or information, in effect making it a new request.

However, the 20-day clock does not stop if only part of the request is being queried.

Requesting clarification/rewording of the request must never be used as a delaying tactic.

Appropriate help could include:

- providing an outline of different kinds of information which might meet the terms of the request;
- providing a general response to the request setting out options for further information which could be provided on request; or
- an indication of what information could be provided within the cost ceiling, in instances where a request would be refused on cost grounds.

This list is not exhaustive. NHS Dumfries and Galloway will be flexible in offering advice and assistance taking in to account the circumstances of each individual request.

If reasonable assistance has been given, the applicant is still unable to describe the information in a way which enables NHS Dumfries and Galloway to identify and locate it, then NHS Dumfries and Galloway will not ask for further clarification and the request will be withdrawn.

Page 9 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

3.9.2 Charging

The information described in our Publication Scheme is available from NHS Dumfries and Galloway free of charge where it can be downloaded from our website or where it can be sent electronically by e-mail unless a specific charge is stated in the Scheme.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway reserve the right to impose charges for providing information in paper copy or on a computer disc. Charges will reflect the actual costs of production and postage to us, as set out in the Publication Scheme.

In the event that a charge is to be made, NHS Dumfries and Galloway will specify the charge and how it has been calculated. Information will not be provided until payment has been received.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway may charge an appropriate fee for dealing with a specific request for information not listed in the Publication Scheme. This charge will be calculated according to the statutory "fees regulations."

There are strict rules on what can and cannot be charged for, how much an authority can charge and an upper limit (currently £600) beyond which an authority does not have to comply with a request.

For example:

- Minimum charge is £8 per hour for staff time which would equate to working on the request for more than 75 hours or 8 days
- Maximum charge of £15 per hour for staff time which would equate to working on the request for more than 40 hours or 5 ½ days

NHS Dumfries and Galloway is entitled to charge for the direct and indirect costs incurred in locating, retrieving and providing information. However, NHS Dumfries and Galloway is not entitled to charge for any costs incurred in determining whether it actually holds the information.

In line with the Section 60 Code, charges for a person's time should not be rounded up to the hour, but expressed as a fraction of the hour if only a fraction is expected to be worked.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway is not entitled to recoup costs in full. The Fees Regulations limit the chargeable amount to a proportion of the actual cost incurred. Where the cost to NHS Dumfries and Galloway of responding to the information request:

Page 10 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

- is less than £100 then no charge can be made
- is above £100, then NHS Dumfries and Galloway is allowed to make a charge of 10% of those costs up to £600, less than the first £100, £50 is the maximum charge.
- exceeds £600, NHS Dumfries and Galloway does not have to provide the information.

3.9.3 Transferring Requests

Where NHS Dumfries and Galloway receives a request for information, which it does not hold, we will inform the applicant promptly that under Section 17 of the Act we do not hold the information requested.

Where NHS Dumfries and Galloway does not hold the requested information but is aware that it is held by another public authority, consideration should be given as to the most helpful way of assisting the applicant. It may include:

- Supplying the applicant with contact details of the authority holding the information and to suggest that the applicant re-applies to that authority.
- Seeking the applicant's permission to transfer their request to the other Public Authority.

Applicants should only be redirected after NHS Dumfries and Galloway has confirmed that another authority holds the relevant information and having advised the applicant in writing of the transfer, the revised contact details and that the statutory period for dealing with the request will run from receipt of the transferred request.

Where a request is partly for information which NHS Dumfries and Galloway does hold, and for that which it does not hold, the transfer will only be made with respect of the part NHS Dumfries and Galloway does not hold.

3.9.4 Consultation with Third Parties

NHS Dumfries and Galloway will undertake consultation with third parties where their views will assist NHS Dumfries and Galloway in assessing exemptions and the public interest.

Page 11 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy Date: May 2016

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

NHS Dumfries and Galloway will make reasonable efforts to contact third parties where necessary, but may consider that consulting the third party is not appropriate if there is a cost of consulting and this may be disproportionate.

In all cases, it is for NHS Dumfries and Galloway (not the third party) to determine whether information should be disclosed under the Act. Non-response or refusal to consent to disclosure by a third party does not; in itself provide sufficient reason for information to be withheld.

3.9.5 Public Sector Contracts

When entering into contracts, NHS Dumfries and Galloway uses the NHS Standard Terms and Conditions of Contract. These terms and conditions have been drawn up to take account of the Act.

Unless an exemption under the Act is applicable in relation to any particular information request, NHS Dumfries and Galloway will be obliged to disclose that information in response to a request.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway will not agree to hold information 'in confidence' that is not, in fact, confidential in nature. Advice from the Scottish Information Commissioner indicates that the exemption provided in the Act only applies if information has been obtained by a public authority from another person or third party, and the disclosure of the information to the public, otherwise than under the Act would constitute a breach of confidence actionable by that, or any other person.

If it becomes necessary for NHS Dumfries and Galloway to question whether information provided 'in confidence' by a contractor may be disclosed in response to an information request, NHS Dumfries and Galloway will consult with the contractor in answering that question.

3.9.6 Exempt information and refusal of requests

NHS Dumfries and Galloway does not have to comply with information requests where the information requested is exempt under the provisions made in Part II of the Act, Sections 25 to 41. Most exemptions are not designed to be applied on a blanket basis.

• Absolute exemptions: If an absolute exemption applies, NHS Dumfries and Galloway will not release the information. Some absolute exemptions apply to areas such as national security or confidential material. Other absolute exemptions apply to information which is available via another route, for example if information is contained in the Board's Publication Scheme.

Page 12 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

 Non-absolute exemptions: If a non-absolute exemption applies then NHS Dumfries and Galloway will have to apply a "public interest" test to determine whether the public interest in disclosing the information outweighs the public interest in maintaining its confidentiality.

There are 17 categories of exempt information covering areas such as government interests and relations, public sector administration, national security and defence, law enforcement and commercial interests.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway:

- will favour disclosure wherever possible and this is where the balance will lie. If an exemption applies, NHS Dumfries and Galloway will provide the applicant with a written refusal notice which explains why the request is being refused. The notice will also inform the applicant of their right to apply for a review of the decision.
- will not comply with a request for information when a fees notice has been issued to an applicant and the fee has not been paid within three months.
- will not comply with a request for information if it estimates that the cost of compliance with the request would exceed the appropriate limit established in statutory Fees Regulations;
- will work with applicants to keep compliance costs to a minimum but reserves the right to either;
- refuse to disclose the information;
- charge whatever costs of disclosure are above the appropriate limit.
 Where charges are raised, the applicant will be issued with a fees notice.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway is not obliged to comply with a request for information if the request is deemed vexatious or repeated as defined by the Act. A log of all requests for information is held for monitoring purposes, so it is possible to identify repeated or vexatious requests.

The Scottish Information Commissioner's general approach is that a request (which may be the latest in a series of requests) is vexatious where it would impose a 'significant burden' on the public authority and:

it does not have a serious purpose or value; and/or

Page 13 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

- it is designed to cause disruption or annoyance to the public authority; and/or
- it has the effect of harassing the public authority; and/or
- it would otherwise, in the opinion of a reasonable person, be considered to be manifestly unreasonable or disproportionate.

Further details on vexatious requests are defined by the Scottish Information Commissioner.

Where a request is refused, NHS Dumfries and Galloway will notify the applicant, within 20 working days of receiving the request, explaining why the request is being refused and stating what exemption is being applied. Similarly, where the public interest test has been applied and the request is still being refused, NHS Dumfries and Galloway will state the reasons why the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosure.

Any notice issued by NHS Dumfries and Galloway to the effect that it is refusing to comply with a request for information will inform the applicant of their right to review by NHS Dumfries and Galloway and of their right to apply to the Scottish Information Commissioner.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway will keep a record of all applications where some or all of the requested information is withheld.

3.9.7 Informing Stakeholders of FolSA requirements

A standard disclaimer will be added to external e-mails that correspondence between NHS Dumfries and Galloway and other stakeholders may be disclosed under the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002.

3.10 Review

Where an applicant is unhappy with the manner in which NHS Dumfries and Galloway handled its request the applicant has 40 working days in which to seek a 'review' of their request. The review procedure is outlined in Appendix 2.

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

3.11 Training

All staff, whether permanent, temporary or contracted will be made aware of how the Act applies to them at induction. Updates will be made available via NHS Dumfries and Galloway's Intranet site, which will include reference to staff's own personal responsibilities for the records they create including emails, minutes of meetings and how they adhere to the legal, policy and procedural guidance.

4. MONITORING

The Chief Executive has ultimate responsibility for compliance with the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 for NHS Dumfries and Galloway.

NHS Dumfries and Galloway's Area Partnership Forum is responsible for approving the Board's FOI Policy.

The FOI Officer has day-to-day responsibility for implementing, monitoring compliance with the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 and reporting on a bi-monthly basis to the NHS Dumfries and Galloway Board.

The FOI Officer will also ensure that all policies and procedures concerning compliance with the Act are produced, approved, implemented and monitored. He/she will also ensure adequate training is provided to relevant personnel and promote awareness amongst all NHS Dumfries and Galloway staff.

Executive Directors and Managers at all levels are responsible for ensuring that the staff for whom they are responsible are aware of and adhere to this Policy. They are also responsible for ensuring staff are updated in regard to any changes in this policy.

All staff, whether permanent, temporary or contracted (including Non Executive Directors), and contractors are responsible for ensuring that they are aware of the requirements incumbent upon them and for ensuring that they comply with these on a day to day basis.

Staff identified as a directorate lead for sourcing and approving information for an FOI request are responsible for providing that information to the FOI Officer promptly within 10 working days, as detailed in Appendix 1. If staff are identified within their department for providing the information for a request and are aware that the information is not held within their department, they must notify the FOI Officer within 24 hours of receiving the request, so that it can be immediately directed elsewhere if appropriate.

Page 15 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Staff are also responsible for ensuring they have good records management practices. All staff should keep all records in an accessible form so that they are able to respond quickly if asked for copies.

4.1 Monitoring Compliance and Reporting

The FOI Officer will maintain a log of all requests made for information under the Act, and details relating to response times.

Updates will be presented to the NHS Dumfries and Galloway Board, on an annual basis, highlighting the number and type of requests being received, any non-compliance issues and the timeliness on responses to these.

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

NHS Dumfries and Galloway is committed to having due regard to the aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty which are to:

- Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act;
- Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not;
- Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.

The Freedom of Information (Scotland) 2002 is a mechanism of accountability, and to inform the public on a number of issues, of which equality and diversity may be one. Being open and accountable and providing access to information is fundamental to the concepts and aims of the Equality Act 2010. To demand fair and equitable services, the public need to know the standards they can expect and have the evidence to demonstrate the extent to which they are being met.

An impact assessment has been carried out on this policy.

Page 16 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

6. Key contacts

Freedom of Information Officer

Rachel Hinchliffe

Chief Executive's Office

Mid North

Crichton Hall

Bankend Road

Dumfries DG1 4TG

Phone: 01387 272752

Email: dg.feedback@nhs.net

Freedom of Information Lead

Laura Geddes

FOI Lead

Chief Executive's Office

Mid North Crichton Hall Bankend Road

Dumfries DG1 4TG

Tel: 01387 272702 (Ext. 32702) Email: <u>laura.geddes2@nhs.net</u>

Scottish Information Commissioner

Kinburn Castle ST ANDREWS

Fife

KY16 9DS

Phone: 01334 464610

Email: enquiries@itspublicknowledge.info

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Author: L Geddes / R Hinchliffe

The only current version of this policy is on the intranet

DOCUMENT CONTROL SHEET

1. Document Status

Title	Freedom of Information Policy	
Author	L Geddes / R Hinchliffe	
Approver	Area Partnership Forum	
Document reference		
Version number	1.0	

2. Document Amendment History

Version	Section(s)	Reason for update	
1.0	New	New policy produced for implementation	

3. Distribution

Name	Responsibility	Version number
FOI Lead	Place on policy register	1.0
Communications Team	Place on intranet and in	1.0
	'latest news'	
Management Team	Dissemination to all staff	1.0
_	through line management	

4. Associated documents

• Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment Policy.

5. Action Plan for Implementation

Action	Lead Officer	Timeframe
Dissemination to staff	Management Team	30 June 2016
through Directors.	_	
Raise awareness and	All line managers	30 June 2016
inform staff		
Use policy	All staff	1 July 2016
		-

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Author: L Geddes / R Hinchliffe

Page 18 of 23

APPENDIX 1 - Procedure for dealing with FOI requests

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION RECEIVED

If request is not a routine enquiry pass on immediately to the Freedom of Information Officer.

FOI Officer considers:

Is the request is valid?

Log details on FOI spreadsheet and save request in allocated casefile

Send acknowledgement



CLARIFY REQUEST (days 1-5) (if necessary)

If not clear what information the applicant wants, seek clarification (20 working day clock stops)

Provide appropriate advice and

Send reminder if clarification not

When clarification received new 20 working day period starts

If no clarification received close request (60 working days after receipt) and notify applicant



ASSESS REQUEST (days 1)

Does the NHS hold the information

Is the request vexatious or a repeat of a previous request from the same applicant?

Draft response using standard



ISSUE RESPONSE (by day 20)

Prepare information for release - redact exempt information, scan or photocopy documents

If applicant has asked for information in a certain format comply with their preference if practical



CONSIDER RESPONSE (by day 18)

FOI officer reviews information and applies relevant exemptions and public interest test as appropriate.



LOCATE INFORMATION (days 2-15)

Directorate to coordinate and retrieve information. Is the information requested recorded? Would complying exceed the £600 cost limit?

Is the information already accessible? Is it due for publication within 12 weeks?

Director or senior manager to approve department

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Author: L Geddes / R Hinchliffe



Page 19 of 23

APPENDIX 2 – INTERNAL REVIEW PROCEDURE

Procedure to be undertaken following receipt of an application to review NHS Dumfries and Galloway's decision not to supply information.

The aim of this procedure is to ensure that, where NHS Dumfries and Galloway has refused an applicant information under FOI(S)A legislation, and the applicant has requested that the organisation reviews its decision not to supply the requested information, that a fair and thorough means of reviewing the decisions taken by NHS Dumfries and Galloway pursuant to the Act, is carried out. This includes decisions taken about where the public interest lies in respect of exempt information, in accordance with the provisions of the Scottish Ministers Code of Practice issued under Section 60 of the Act.

Any applicant who is dissatisfied with the way that NHS Dumfries and Galloway has dealt with a request for information is entitled to require NHS Dumfries and Galloway to review its decision.

A request for a review must be made no later than 40 working days following:

- the expiry of the period for responding to a request for information.
 Authorities may comply with a request for review after this time period if it considers it appropriate to do so or;
- from the date on which the authority complied with the request, sent a fees or refusal notice or;
- a notice that the information is not held.

Log the request for review and open a file

The Freedom of Information Officer will immediately log the review request and notify the FOI Lead, if she/he did not receive the request initially.

Acknowledge the request

The FOI Lead will acknowledge the request for a review in writing to the applicant. This will indicate that a comprehensive reply will be sent to them within 20 working days of the date of receipt of the request

Conducting the review

Following receipt of the request for a review, the FOI Lead will establish a panel to review the decision.

Page 20 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Part III, paragraph 66 of the Scottish Ministers Code of Practice provides 'Where the complaint concerns a request for information under the general right of access, the review should be handled by staff who were not involved in the original decision, where this is reasonably practicable'.

All reasonably practicable steps shall accordingly be taken to arrange for all reviews to involve a senior officer who was not a party to the original decision, but has an understanding and awareness of the information being requested.

It is important that the review procedure enables the matter to be considered afresh, taking into consideration all the factors relevant to the issue and taking into account the matters raised by the review.

It is possible to reverse or amend any decision, which has already been taken prior to this procedure being engaged. In the event of decisions being reversed or amended, all necessary steps must be taken promptly to implement the reversed or amended decision within the 20 working day period permitted for the review.

Notification of Review Decision

Following the review, the FOI Lead will write to the applicant detailing NHS Dumfries and Galloway's decision. The notice must include the following:

- if decision is to grant request form or manner of access and any fees payable;
- if access is refused, the reasons for refusal, quoting the relevant section of the Act;
- details of rights of appeal and contact details for the Scottish Information Commissioner.

Where the outcome of the review is that information shall be disclosed which was previously withheld, the information should either be sent with the decision or the applicant must be notified in the decision letter or email how soon it will be disclosed.

If the outcome is that NHS Dumfries and Galloway's procedures have not been properly followed either in the handling of the original request or in compliance with NHS Dumfries and Galloway's Publication Scheme, the decision shall contain an apology on behalf of NHS Dumfries and Galloway and an undertaking given that NHS Dumfries and Galloway will take appropriate steps to prevent similar errors occurring in the future.

Page 21 of 23

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Monitoring

The FOI Lead will keep a log of all actions taken throughout the review. He/she will ensure that a record is kept of the review and the outcome made and whether or not the review was determined within the 20 working days, as set out in the Scottish Ministers Code of Practice.

The FOI Lead will be responsible for reporting monthly to the Corporate Management Team upon all requests for a review under the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002, with a view to them being monitored and, if necessary, recommendations being made for amending NHS Dumfries and Galloway's procedures for dealing with requests for information where such action is indicated by more than occasional reversals of initial decisions.

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0

Author: L Geddes / R Hinchliffe

Page 22 of 23

APPENDIX 3 – DEFINITION OF ENVIRONMENT INFORMATION REGULATIONS (SCOTLAND) 2004

"Environmental information" has the same meaning as in Article 2(1) of the Directive, namely any information in written, visual, aural, electronic or any other material form on –

- (a) the state of the elements of the environment, such as air and atmosphere, water, soil, land, landscape and natural sites including wetlands, coastal and marine areas, biological diversity and its components, including genetically modified organisms, and the interaction among these elements;
- (b) factors, such as substances, energy, noise, radiation or waste, including radioactive waste, emissions, discharges and other releases into the environment, affecting or likely to affect the elements of the environment referred to in paragraph (a);
- (c) measures (including administrative measures), such as policies, legislation, plans, programmes, environmental agreements, and activities affecting or likely to affect the elements and factors referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) as well as measures or activities designed to protect those elements;
- (d) reports on the implementation of environmental legislation;
- (e) costs benefit and other economic analyses and assumptions used within the framework of the measures and activities referred to in paragraph (c); and
- (f) the state of human health and safety, including the contamination of the food chain, where relevant, conditions of human life, cultural sites and built structures inasmuch as they are or may be affected by the state of the elements of the environment referred to in paragraph (a) or, through those elements, by any of the matters referred to in paragraphs (b) and (c).

Title: Freedom of Information Policy

Date: May 2016 Version: 1.0